In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006

MR01 Particulars of a charge





	A fee is payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the last page You can use the WebFiling service to Please go to www.companieshouse gove last page	
1	You may use this form to register You may not use this form to	For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.companieshouse gov.uk
٥	This form must be delivered to the Registrar for registration will 21 days beginning with the day after the date of creation of the chard delivered outside of the 21 days it will be rejected unless it is accompactorized extending the time for delivery You must enclose a certified copy of the instrument with this form. The scanned and placed on the public record.	*A2DXOA2A* 02/08/2013 #279
1	Company details	COMPANIES HOUSE
Company number	0 7 1 6 7 5 0 5	→ Filling in this form
Company name in full	Montage Productions PLC (the "Chargor")	Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals
· /	individue (individue)	All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *
2	Charge creation date	
Charge creation date	2 2 0 7 2 0 1 3	
3	Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the d	harge
_	Please show the names of each of the persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge	
Name	Ingenious Project Finance Limited (the "Chargee")	
Name		
Name		
Name		
	If there are more than four names, please supply any four of these names then tick the statement below I confirm that there are more than four persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge	

MR01 Particulars of a charge

4	Description				
	Please give a short description of any land (including buildings), ship, aircraft or intellectual property registered (or required to be registered) in the UK which is subject to this fixed charge or fixed security	Continuation page Please use a continuation page if you need to enter more details			
Description					
5	Fixed charge or fixed security				
	Does the instrument include a fixed charge or fixed security over any tangible or intangible (or in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box				
/	✓ Yes				
	□ No				
6	Floating charge				
,	Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box				
1	✓ Yes Continue				
	No Go to Section 7				
,	Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company?				
	✓ Yes				
7	Negative Pledge	·			
_	Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the chargor from creating				
	any further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box				
	✓ Yes				
	□ No				

	MR01 Particulars of a charge		
3	Trustee statement •		
	You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge	● This statement may be filed after the registration of the charge (use form MR06)	
	Signature		
	Please sign the form here		
gnature	Signature X		
	This form must be signed by Apérson with an interest in the charge		

MR01

Particulars of a charge

Presenter information

We will send the certificate to the address entered below All details given here will be available on the public record. You do not have to show any details here but, if none are given, we will send the certificate to the company's Registered Office address

Contact name Legal & Business Affairs
Company name Ingenious Media
Address 15 Golden Square
Post town London
County/Region
Postcode W 1 F 9 J G
Country UK
DX
Telephone

✓ Certificate

We will send your certificate to the presenter's address if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank

✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing

Please make sure you have remembered the following

- The company name and number match the information held on the public Register
- You have included a certified copy of the instrument with this form
- You have entered the date on which the charge was created
- You have shown the names of persons entitled to the charge
- ☐ You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8
- ☐ You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate
- ☐ You have signed the form
- You have enclosed the correct fee
- Please do not send the original instrument, it must be a certified copy

Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record

How to pay

A fee of £13 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed on paper

Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House'

Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address. However, for expediency, we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below.

For companies registered in England and Wales The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ DX 33050 Cardiff

For companies registered in Scotland

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post)

For companies registered in Northern Ireland The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG DX 481 N R Belfast 1

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www companieshouse gov uk or email enquiries@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.companieshouse.gov.uk



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 7167505

Charge code: 0716 7505 0004

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 22nd July 2013 and created by MONTAGE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 2nd August 2013

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 6th August 2013





Deed of Security Assignment and Charge

Relating to		CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY OF THE ORIGINAL
"Mulligan"		INGENIOUS MEDIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED 15 GOLDEN SQUARE 1 ONDON
Dated 22 July	2013	DATE/
Hazeltine Productions PLC	(1)	
Montage Productions PLC	(2)	
Inganious Project Finance I imited	(3)	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Definitions and Interpretation	2
2	The Chargor's Covenant	3
3	Security Assignment	3
4	Charge	3
5	Enforcement	6
6	Exercise of Rights	6
7	Protection of Third Parties	9
8	Warranties and Undertakings of the Chargor	9
9	Indemnity	11
10	Undertaking for Reassignment	12
11	Nature of the Security	12
12	Grant of Time or Indulgence	13
13	Further Assurance	13
14	Notice of Default	13
15	General	13
16	Assignment	14
17	Partial Unenforceability	14
18	Notices	14
19	No Waiver	15
20	Governing Law	15
21	Clause Headings	15
22	Counterparts	15

DATE:

22 July

2013

PARTIES:

- (1) Ingenious Project Finance Limited (incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, Company Number 07816345) whose registered office is at 15 Golden Square, London W1F 9JG (the "Chargee"),
- (2) Hazeltine Productions PLC (incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, Company Number 07166456) whose registered office is at 15 Golden Square, London W1F 9JG (the "First Chargor"), and
- (3) Montage Productions PLC (incorporated under the laws of England and Wales, Company Number 07167505) whose registered office is at 15 Golden Square, London W1F 9JG (the "Second Chargor" and, together with the First Chargor, the "Chargor")

RECITALS

- (A) Pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement, the Chargee has agreed to advance to the Chargor the Facility (as defined in the Loan Agreement) and, in addition, such other amounts as may be payable under the terms of the Loan Agreement (such principal sum and any and all other amounts paid by the Chargee to the Chargor under the Loan Agreement being referred to herein as the "Loan") for the Purpose on the terms and subject to the conditions of the Loan Agreement
- (B) The Chargor has agreed to execute this Deed in favour of the Chargee as security for repayment by the Chargor of the Debt

THE PARTIES NOW AGREE as follows

1 Definitions and Interpretation

- In this Deed (including the Recitals) the capitalised words and expressions not otherwise defined below shall have the meaning given to them in the Loan Agreement
- The following words and expressions shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings respectively

"Collateral" the property, assets and interests (whether present or future) charged or assigned or each or any of them or part

future) charged or assigned or each or any of them or part thereof pursuant to the terms of this Deed in favour of the Chargee and all other property and assets which at any time are or are required to be charged in favour of the

Chargee under this Deed,

"Deed" this Deed of Security Assignment and Charge,

"Loan Agreement" the loan agreement dated on or about the date hereof

between the Chargor and Chargee in respect of the Project,

"Permitted Security" the Encumbrances created by this Deed and the

Encumbrances to which the Chargee has given its written

consent pursuant to the terms of any Relevant Agreement,

"Receiver"

any receiver or manager or administrative receiver, and

"Secured Obligations"

the Chargor's obligations set out in Clause 2

- Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, words denoting any gender shall include every gender and words denoting persons shall include corporations and vice versa
- Any reference in this Deed to any statute, statutory provision, delegated legislation, code or guideline shall be a reference thereto as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, extended, varied, superseded, replaced, substituted or consolidated
- Unless otherwise stated time shall be of the essence for the purpose of the performance of the Chargor's obligations under this Deed

2 The Chargor's Covenant

In consideration of the Chargee making or continuing to make available the Loan or any other accommodation (whether financial or otherwise) to the Chargor under the Loan Agreement, the Chargor hereby covenants to perform and discharge when due all its obligations under the Loan Agreement and hereunder and to repay the Debt when due to the Chargee in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Loan Agreement and hereunder

3 Security Assignment

The Chargor, by way of continuing security for the performance of the Secured Obligations, hereby assigns to the Chargee with full title guarantee subject to the proviso for re-assignment in Clause 10 below, all of its right, title and interest (if any) both present and future, vested and contingent, statutory and otherwise, in and to the following

- all the Chargor's rights, interests and benefits in and to the Relevant Agreements (to which the Chargor is a party) and all other agreements entered into or to be entered into by the Chargor relating to the Project and the benefit of all income or moneys payable to the Chargor or to which the Chargor is entitled in respect thereof (to the extent that the same represent Project Receipts), and
- 3 2 all income and proceeds derived from any and all of the foregoing

4 Charge

- The Chargor, by way of continuing security for the performance of the Secured Obligations, hereby charges with full title guarantee by way of first fixed charge in favour of the Chargee, the Chargor's right, title and interest (if any) both present and future, vested and contingent, statutory and otherwise, in and to those items referred to in Clause 3 (insofar as such items are not effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3) and, to the extent the same relate to the Project, any and all of the following
 - (a) the freehold and leasehold property of the Chargor both present and future and all buildings and fixtures (including tenant's and trade fixtures) from time to time on any such property and all plant machinery vehicles computers and office and other equipment of the Chargor both present and future (excluding stock in trade of the Chargor) (the "Properties"),

- (b) all stocks shares bonds and securities of any kind whatsoever whether marketable or otherwise and all other interests including but not limited to loan capital of the Chargor both present and future in any company firm consortium or entity wheresoever situate including all allotments accretions offers rights benefits and advantages whatsoever at any time accruing offered or arising in respect of or incidental to the same and all stocks shares rights money or property accruing thereto or offered at any time by way of conversion redemption bonus preference option or otherwise in respect thereof (the "Securities"),
- (c) all book and other debts revenues and claims both present and future including things in action which may give rise to a debt revenue or claim and including without limitation bank deposits and credit balances and the benefit of all rights and claims of any nature whatsoever against any lessees, licensees or other occupiers and against all guarantors and sureties for the obligations of such lessees or occupiers from time to time of the whole or any parts of any of the Properties due or owing or which may become due or owing to or purchased or otherwise acquired by the Chargor and the full benefit of all rights and remedies relating thereto including but not limited to any negotiable or non-negotiable instruments guarantees indemnities debentures legal and equitable charges and other security reservation of proprietary rights, rights of tracing liens and all other rights and remedies of whatsoever nature in respect of the same (the "Debts"),
- (d) the uncalled capital goodwill and all patents patent applications trade marks and service marks (whether registered or not) brand and trade names registered designs design rights and copyrights computer programmes inventions confidential information know-how and all other intellectual or intangible property or rights and all applications for the protection of any of the foregoing in any part of the world and all licences agreements and ancillary and connected rights and benefits relating to the intangible property both present and future of the Chargor (the "Capital"),
- (e) all present and future contracts or policies of insurance and assurance (including life policies) in which the Chargor now or hereafter has an interest and all moneys from time to time payable thereunder including any refund of premium (the "Insurances"), and
- (f) (the "Project Assets") all of its right, title and interest in and to the Project and all collateral, allied, ancillary, and subsidiary rights therein, and all properties and things of value pertaining thereto and all products and proceeds thereof whether now in existence or hereafter made, acquired or produced throughout the world including (i) any and all documents, receipts or books and records (including, without limitation, documents or receipts of any kind or nature issued by any pledgeholder, warehouseman or bailee) with respect to the Project and any element thereof, (11) all machinery, electrical and electronic components, equipment, fixtures, furniture, office machinery, vehicles, trailers, implements and other tangible personal property of every kind and description and all goods of like or type now owned or hereafter acquired by the Chargor in substitution or replacement thereof, and all additions and accessions thereto and all rents, proceeds and products thereof including, without limitation, the rights to insurance covering such equipment, (iii) all present and future deposits and other accounts of the Chargor maintained with any bank or other financial institution in any jurisdiction and any extension or renewal of such accounts and all certificates and instruments, if any, from time to time representing or evidencing such accounts from time to time opened by the Chargor and any and all monies (including interest) from time to time standing to the credit of each of them, and (iv) all physical properties of every kind or nature of or relating to the Project and all versions thereof not otherwise included in this clause including, without limitation, all

physical properties relating to the development, production, completion, delivery, exhibition, distribution or other exploitation of the Project, and all versions thereof or any part thereof in whatever state of completion, and all duplicates, drafts, versions, variations and copies of each thereof and any and all documents, instruments, goods and artwork which may arise in connection with the creation, production, completion, delivery, financing, ownership, possession or exploitation of the Project, and (v) the proceeds of any and/or all of the foregoing

- The Chargor, by way of continuing security for the full and timely performance of the Secured Obligations, hereby charges with full title guarantee in favour of the Chargee by way of floating charge the undertaking and all those rights, properties and the assets comprising the Collateral whatsoever and wheresoever situated both present and future, to the extent not effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3 above or charged by way of fixed charge pursuant to Clause 4 1 above and the Chargor agrees not to part with, sell or dispose of the whole or part of said assets (except by way of sale on an arms length basis in the ordinary course of its business and for the purposes of carrying on the same and without prejudice to the above-mentioned first fixed charge and other than to the Chargee)
- Fig. 1. The Chargee shall be entitled by notice in writing to the Chargor to convert the floating charge referred to in Clause 4.2 into a specific charge as regards any assets specified in the notice, and in any event the said floating charge shall automatically be converted into a fixed charge as regards all the assets subject to the said floating charge without notice from the Chargee to the Chargor upon the happening of any Default Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 (incorporated by Schedule 16 to the Enterprise Act 2002) shall apply to any floating charge created pursuant to this Deed.
- The Chargor undertakes to hold upon trust by way of security for the Chargee absolutely, the entire interest and benefit of the Chargor (if any) in and to all that Collateral or any part thereof which cannot be charged or assigned by the Chargor together with, without limitation, all proceeds, money and other rights and benefits to which the Chargor is beneficially entitled in respect of such Collateral
- 4 5 Clause 4 3 shall not apply by reason only of a moratorium being obtained or anything being done with a view to a moratorium being obtained under Section 1A of the Insolvency Act 1986 (as amended)
- 4 6 The Chargor shall not without the Chargee's prior written consent create or permit to arise or to subsist any Encumbrance upon the whole or any part of the Collateral other than the Permitted Security
- The security interests in favour of the Chargee created herein shall rank in priority to any other Encumbrances (whether they are fixed, floating or otherwise) created in respect of the Collateral
- The Chargor shall when required by and at the expense of the Chargee (whether before or after this Deed shall have become enforceable) execute and do all such mortgages, charges, transfers, assignments, assurances, documents, acts and things in such form and otherwise as the Chargee may reasonably require for perfecting the security intended to be hereby constituted, for further charging the Collateral in order to secure further the Secured Obligations, for converting any floating charge forming part of this Deed into a fixed charge, for protecting the Chargee's interest in the Collateral or for effecting or facilitating the exercise by the Chargee of its powers, authorities and discretions hereby or by statute conferred on them or any Receiver and shall from time to time when so required by the Chargee produce to or deposit with the Chargee during the

- continuance of this Deed all deeds and documents of title (to the extent that the Chargor is in actual or constructive possession or control of the same) relating to the Collateral or any of them
- In this Deed the covenants implied by Sections 2(1) and 3(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 shall apply to the assignment hereby created

5 Enforcement

- The security created by this Deed shall become enforceable upon or at any time after (1) the Chargor enforces its security over any third party, and/or (11) the happening of a Default without notice to the Chargor and without liability for any loss (whether or not due to negligence) or any costs of any kind, and at such time the Chargee's obligations under the Loan Agreement shall terminate (without prejudice to the Chargee's rights thereunder) and the Debt shall be immediately repayable
- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Deed or any Relevant Agreement, the Chargor's obligations to the Chargee under this Deed and any other Relevant Agreement to which it is a party are limited to payments out of Project Receipts and the Collateral (but, in respect of those assets referred to in sub-clauses (b), (c), (d) and (e) of Clause 4 1, solely to the extent they refer to or relate to the Project)

6 Exercise of Rights

- 6 1 The Chargee may at any time after the security hereby created shall have become enforceable
 - of 11 in relation to the Collateral exercise the power of sale conferred by Section 101 of the Law of Property Act 1925 ("LPA") as though this Deed were a mortgage made by deed and/or sell, call in, collect, convert into money or otherwise deal with or dispose of the Collateral or any part thereof on an instalment basis or otherwise and generally in such manner and upon such terms whatever as the Chargee may think fit,
 - exercise all of the powers set out in the LPA and in Schedule 1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 and any other powers the Chargee may have by law, and/or
 - 6 1 3 in writing, appoint a Receiver over all or any part of the Collateral upon such terms as the Chargee shall think fit and remove the Receiver and appoint another in his place and exercise any or all of the powers which a Receiver could exercise
- 62 If a Receiver is appointed he shall be the agent of the Chargor (which shall alone be personally liable for the Receiver's acts, defaults and remuneration) and, without prejudice to any other powers the Receiver may have by law (notwithstanding that he is or may not be an administrator or an administrative receiver), he shall have all the powers set out in the LPA and in Schedule 1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 and in addition shall have power
 - to enter upon any premises necessary and to take possession of, collect, get in or realise all and any part of the Collateral and to take, enforce, defend or abandon any actions, suits and proceedings in the name of the Chargor or otherwise in relation to the Collateral as he or the Chargee shall think fit,
 - 622 to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person who is a creditor of the Chargor in relation to the Collateral or any part thereof,

- to assign, sell, lease, licence, grant options to sell, deal with or manage or concur in assigning, selling, leasing, licensing, granting options to sell, dealing with or managing of any Collateral and to vary, terminate or accept surrenders of leases or licences in respect of any of the Collateral in such manner and generally on such terms and conditions as he or the Chargee shall think fit and to carry any such transactions into effect in the name of and on behalf of the Chargor or otherwise,
- to take any steps that may be necessary or desirable to effect compliance with all or any of the agreements hereby assigned,
- 625 to carry on, manage or concur in carrying on and managing the business of the Chargor solely in respect of the Project or any part thereof including, without limitation, to take over and complete the production of the Project,
- to raise or borrow any money that may be required upon the security of the whole or any part of the Collateral or without such security upon such terms as the Chargee or he shall think fit.
- to give valid receipts for all monies and execute all assurances and things which may be proper or desirable for the sole purpose of realising the Collateral,
- to make any arrangement or compromise, pay any compensation or incur any obligation and enter into any contracts which he or the Chargee shall think expedient in the interests of the Chargee in respect of the Collateral,
- 6 2 9 in respect of the Collateral to do all such other acts and things as may be considered to be incidental or conducive to any of the matters or powers aforesaid and which he or the Chargee lawfully may or can do, and
- to exercise all such other power and authority in relation to all or any part of the Collateral as he or the Chargee shall think fit to confer and so that he or the Chargee may in relation to all or any part of the Collateral exercise and confer any powers and authorities which it could exercise and confer if it had full title guarantee thereto

Provided Always that nothing herein contained shall make the Chargee liable to the Receiver in respect of his remuneration, costs, charges or expenses or otherwise for which together with the Receiver's acts, contracts, defaults and omissions the Chargor alone shall be liable

- The foregoing powers of sale and of appointing a Receiver shall be exercisable without any restrictions (such as but not limited to those contained in Sections 103 and 109 of the LPA) but subject always to the provisions of the Enterprise Act 2002 and the Insolvency Act 1986 (as amended)
- The power to appoint a Receiver hereinbefore conferred shall be in addition to all statutory and other powers of the Chargee under the LPA to the extent the LPA may be relevant to the security hereby created and the Receiver shall have and be entitled to exercise all powers conferred under the LPA in the same way as if he had been duly appointed thereunder. Such power to appoint a Receiver herein or by statute conferred shall be and remain exercisable by the Chargee notwithstanding any prior appointment in respect of all or any part of the Collateral.
- The Chargee or the Receiver may enforce the security created by this Deed in any order which the Chargee or the Receiver in its absolute discretion thinks fit

- The Chargee may appoint more than one Receiver and in such event any reference in this Deed to a Receiver shall apply to both or all of the Receivers so appointed and the appointment of Receivers so made shall be deemed to be a joint and several appointment and so that the rights, powers, duties and discretions vested in the Receivers so appointed may be exercised by them all jointly or severally by each of them
- The Chargee shall not, nor shall the Receiver, by reason of the Chargee or the Receiver entering into possession of the Collateral or any part thereof, be liable to account as mortgagee in possession or for any default or omission of any nature whatsoever for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable, or be liable for any loss or damage occasioned by or upon realisation or diminution in value happening in or about the exercise of any power conferred hereby or by statute and the Chargor shall have no right of action or claim against the Chargee on the grounds that a better price could or might have been obtained on any such realisation, sale or disposal. The Chargee and the Receiver shall be entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by statute on mortgagees and Receivers.
- As and when the security created hereunder becomes enforceable by the Chargee, the Chargor declares that it will hold the Collateral (subject to the Chargor's rights of redemption) upon trust to convey, assign or otherwise deal with the same in such manner and to such person as the Chargee shall direct and declare that it shall be lawful for the Chargee by an instrument under its common seal to appoint a new trustee or trustees of the Collateral and in particular, but without limitation, at any time or times to appoint a new trustee or trustees thereof in place of the Chargor
- The Chargee shall have the right at its complete discretion to give time or indulgence to or compound with and to make such other arrangement of whatsoever nature as it shall see fit with the Chargor or any other person, firm, company or other organisation without prejudice to the Chargor's liability hereunder or the Chargee's right and title to the Collateral and any monies received by the Chargee from any other person, firm, company or other organisation may be applied by the Chargee to any account or transaction of such persons or otherwise as the Chargee shall see fit
- At any time after the security created hereunder becomes enforceable or after any powers conferred by any Encumbrance having priority to the security shall have become exercisable, the Chargee may redeem such or any other prior encumbrance or procure the transfer thereof to itself and may settle and pass the accounts of the encumbrancer and any account so settled and passed shall be conclusive and binding on the Chargor and all monies paid by the Chargee to the encumbrancer in accordance with such accounts shall as from such payment be due from the Chargor to the Chargee and shall bear interest, fees, costs and charges owing hereunder
- At any time after the security created hereunder becomes enforceable the Chargee or a Receiver may (but shall not be obliged to) do all such things and incur all such expenditure as the Chargee or such Receiver shall in their sole discretion consider necessary or desirable to remedy such default or protect or realise the Collateral or its interests under this Deed and in particular (but without limitation) may pay any monies which may be payable in respect of any of the Collateral and any monies expended in so doing by the Chargee or Receiver shall be deemed an expense properly incurred and shall be recoverable from the Collateral
- Any monies obtained by the Chargee or by a Receiver appointed hereunder whether by sale of any of the Collateral or otherwise shall be applied
 - 6 12 1 first, in payment of all costs and expenses incurred and incidental to the powers conferred on the Chargee or the Receiver hereunder, and

- 6 12 2 second, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations (in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement)
- Following the occurrence of a Default, all monies received, recovered or realised by the Chargee under this Deed may at the sole discretion of the Chargee be credited by the Chargee to any suspense or impersonal account pending the application from time to time of such monies and accrued interest thereon in or towards the discharge of any of the Debt

7 Protection of Third Parties

- No purchaser, mortgagee or other third party dealing with the Chargee and/or Receiver or other person dealing with the Chargee and/or Receiver shall be concerned to enquire whether any of the powers which the Chargee or the Receiver has exercised or purported to exercise has arisen or become exercisable or whether the security created hereunder has become enforceable, the Secured Obligations have been performed or as to the propriety or validity of the exercise or purported exercise of any such power or to see to the application of any money paid to the Charger or such Receiver or otherwise as to the propriety or regularity or any other dealing by the Chargee or the Receiver and in the absence of bad faith on the part of such third party, such dealing shall be deemed to be within the powers conferred hereunder and to be valid and effectual accordingly and the title of a purchaser and the position of such a person shall not be prejudiced by reference to any of those matters
- 7 2 The receipt of the Chargee or the Receiver shall be an absolute and conclusive discharge to a purchaser and shall relieve such person of any obligation to see to the application of any sums paid to or by the direction of the Chargee or the Receiver

8 Warranties and Undertakings of the Chargor

- 8 1 The Chargor warrants, undertakes and agrees with the Chargee as follows -
 - 8 1 1 to the best of its knowledge, all statements herein whether as to matters of fact or law are true,
 - 8 1 2 It is a company duly incorporated and validly existing in good standing under and by virtue of the laws of England and Wales,
 - 8 1 3 it is not deemed to be unable to pay its debts within the meaning of Section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986,
 - 8 1 4 save for the Permitted Security the Collateral is and shall be free from all Encumbrances,
 - the memorandum and articles of association of the Chargor include provisions which give the Chargor all necessary corporate power and authority to own its assets, to carry on its business as it is now being conducted and the Chargor is duly qualified to do business in all jurisdictions and to enter into and perform the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party and it has the full capacity to enter into this Deed and all other agreements and documents required hereunder and has the full capacity to charge and assign to the Chargee the Collateral and it has taken all corporate or other action necessary to authorise the execution, delivery and performance of the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party,
 - to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no proceedings, claims or litigation current, pending or threatened which shall adversely affect the distribution and

exploitation of the Project or the production completion and delivery of the Project or would adversely affect the ability of the Chargor to observe or perform its obligations under the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party,

- this Deed constitutes (or will, when executed, constitute) the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Chargor enforceable in accordance with its terms,
- all consents, authorisations, approvals, licences, exemptions, filings, registrations, notarisations and other requirements of governmental, judicial and public bodies and authorities required or advisable in connection with the execution, delivery, performance, validity, admissibility in evidence and enforceability of the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party have been obtained or effected (or, in the case of registrations, will be effected within any applicable required period) and (if obtained or effected) are in full force and effect, there has been no default in the performance of any of their terms or conditions,
- the execution, delivery and performance of Relevant Agreements to which it is a party does not and will not violate in any respect any provision of (i) any law judgment, regulation, treaty, convention, decree, order or consent to which the Chargor is subject or by which the Chargor, the Collateral, or any material part of its assets or business is bound or affected, or (ii) the constitutional documents of the Chargor, or (iii) any charge, indenture, agreement or other instrument to which the Chargor is a party or which is binding on it or any of its assets, and do not and will not result in the creation or imposition of any Encumbrance on its assets in accordance with any agreement or instrument (other than this Deed), and
- 8 1 10 no event has occurred which constitutes a default under or in respect of any law, or of any agreement or instrument to which the Chargor is a party or by which the Chargor or its assets may be bound (including, inter alia, the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party) and no event has occurred which, with the giving of notice, or the passing of time or on any other condition being satisfied or determination being made would be likely to constitute a default under or in respect of any law or agreement which is likely either to have a material adverse effect on the assets, financial condition, prospects or operations of the Chargor or materially and adversely affect its ability to observe or perform its obligations under this Deed
- 8 2 The Chargor hereby covenants and undertakes with the Chargee that it will
 - at all times comply with the terms (express or implied) of this Deed and the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party,
 - remain liable under the contracts and agreements charged or assigned hereunder to perform all the obligations assumed by it thereunder,
 - not require the Chargee to enforce any term of any of the said contracts and agreements against any party (it being acknowledged that in no circumstances shall the Chargee have any obligation so to enforce),
 - 8 2 4 notify the Chargee of any default under the said agreements to which it is a party and of which it becomes aware,
 - upon the request of the Chargee give written notice (in such form and to such persons as the Chargee may require) of the security hereby created,

- from time to time promptly when required produce to the Chargee evidence sufficient to satisfy the Chargee that the Chargor has at all relevant times complied with the provisions of this Deed and the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party and such information concerning the business and affairs of the Chargor relating to the Project, its property, assets and liabilities relating to the Project as the Chargee may reasonably require,
- at the Chargee's expense, execute financing statements under Uniform Commercial Codes of such states or counties in the United States of America as the Chargee may consider appropriate to perfect or protect the Chargee's security hereunder promptly following request by the Chargee,
- 8 2 8 not without the prior written consent of the Chargee sell, transfer, dispose of or part with possession or control of or attempt to sell, transfer or dispose of the Collateral or any part of it or any interest in it,
- mmediately upon becoming aware of the same notify the Chargee of any material loss, theft, damage or destruction of the Collateral or any part of it,
- 8 2 10 not allow any counterclaim or set-off or other equity in respect of any sum payable in relation to the Relevant Agreements, the Project and/or rights in the Project,
- 8 2 11 ensure that at all times its liabilities under the Relevant Agreements to which it is a party will be and remain the direct, general and unconditional liabilities of the Chargor, and will rank at least part passu with all its other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities, with the exception of any liabilities which are mandatorily preferred by law and not by any charge,
- 8 2 12 immediately on becoming aware of the same, notify the Chargee in writing of the occurrence of any Default and at the same time inform the Chargee of any action taken or proposed to be taken in connection with it,
- 8 2 13 immediately upon becoming aware of the same, promptly give notice in writing to the Chargee of any litigation, arbitration or administrative or other proceeding before or of any judicial, administrative, governmental or other authority or arbitrator, of any dispute with any governmental regulatory body or law enforcement authority, of any labour dispute or of any other event which has or may have a material adverse effect on its assets or prospects,
- 8 2 14 not, without the prior written consent of the Chargee, change the nature of its business,
- The Chargor hereby repeats in favour of the Chargee the warranties, representations, undertakings and covenants set out in the Loan Agreement as if the same were set forth and incorporated herein as part of these presents
- The representations and warranties in this Clause 8 will be deemed to be repeated with reference to the facts and circumstances then subsisting as of each day on which any obligations are owing by the Chargor to the Chargee under the Loan Agreement

9 Indemnity

The Chargor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Chargee and any Receiver from and against all actions, claims, proceedings, expenses, demands and liabilities now or hereafter brought against or incurred by either or both of them, or against or by any person for whose act or

omission either or both of them may be liable, resulting from any breach or non-observance by the Chargor of any of the provisions of this Deed or any failure to perform the Secured Obligations or any payment in respect of the provisions of this Deed or in respect of the Secured Obligations being set aside or declared void for any reason. The Chargee shall be entitled so to indemnify and hold harmless the Receiver on behalf of the Chargor which shall reimburse the Chargee accordingly. The Chargor's liability to the Chargee under the first or second sentences hereof shall form part of the Secured Obligations.

10 Undertaking for Reassignment

Upon fulfilment of the Secured Obligations pursuant to the Loan Agreement and/or this Deed the Chargee will at the Chargor's request and expense -

- (a) reassign to the Chargor, or as it may direct, the rights and benefits that the Chargor has assigned to the Chargee as security,
- (b) release the Collateral charged pursuant to Clause 4, and
- (c) upon written request and at the Chargor's expense execute and deliver to the Chargor all documents and instruments reasonably required or desirable to effect the said reassignment and release

11 Nature of the Security

- This Deed is a continuing security and shall remain in force notwithstanding any intermediate payment or settlement of account or other act, omission or matter whatsoever which but for this provision might operate to release or otherwise exonerate the Chargor from its obligations hereunder or affect such obligations or release or diminish the security conferred hereunder and is in addition to and shall not merge into or otherwise prejudice or affect any guarantee, Encumbrance or other right or remedy now or hereafter held by or available to the Chargee and shall not be in any way prejudiced or affected thereby or by the invalidity thereof or by the Chargee now or hereafter dealing with, exchanging, releasing, modifying or abstaining from perfecting or enforcing any of the same or any right which the Chargee may now or hereafter have or giving time for payment or indulgence or compounding with any other person
- The security created by this Deed is in addition to, and shall not be merged into, or in any way prejudice any other security interest, charge, document or right which the Chargee may now or at any time hereafter hold or have as regards the Charger or any other person, firm or corporation in respect of the Collateral and shall not in any way be prejudiced or affected thereby or by the invalidity thereof or by the Chargee now or hereafter dealing with, exchanging, releasing, modifying or abstaining from perfecting or enforcing any of the same or any rights which it now or hereafter has and this security shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security unless and until the Chargee shall release and discharge this Deed in accordance with Clause 10
- The rights granted to the Chargee hereunder are in addition to, and in no way limit or restrict, the rights granted to Chargee in the Loan Agreement
- The exercise by the Chargee of its rights under this Deed shall in no way affect or be in substitution for such other legal or equitable rights and remedies as the Chargee may have against the Chargor or any third party

12 Grant of Time or Indulgence

The security created by this Deed shall not be affected or prejudiced in any way by the Chargee giving time or granting any indulgence or accepting any compromise from or compounding with or making any other arrangement with the Chargor or any other person, firm or company in respect of the Secured Obligations

13 Further Assurance

- The Chargor hereby undertakes and covenants to the Chargee at the Chargee's request and expense to do all such further acts and execute all such further documents and instruments as the Chargee may from time to time require to vest in or further assure to the Chargee the rights expressed to be assigned and granted to the Chargee under this Deed and for the protection and enforcement of the security hereby created
- 13.2 Subject to the occurrence of a Default, the Chargor hereby irrevocably and by way of security appoints the Chargee and, if any Receiver shall be appointed, the Chargee and the Receiver jointly and severally, the attorney or attorneys of the Chargor and in its name and on its behalf to sign, execute and deliver all deeds and documents and to do all acts and things which the Chargee may require or deem appropriate for the purpose of realising this security. The Chargor hereby acknowledges that such appointment shall be coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable. The Chargee shall promptly deliver to the Chargor a copy of each deed or document signed or executed under this power of attorney.
- This appointment shall operate as a general power of attorney made under Section 10 of the Powers of Attorney Act 1971. This power of attorney shall terminate with out further notice on the release and discharge of this Deed pursuant to Clause 10 hereof.

14 Notice of Default

The Chargor shall give written notice to the Chargee of the occurrence of any Default as soon as such occurrence becomes known to the Chargor

15 General

- Any re-assignment, release, settlement or discharge between the Chargor and the Chargee shall be conditional upon no security or payment made or given to the Chargee being avoided, reduced, set aside or rendered unenforceable by virtue of any provision or enactment now or hereafter in force relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation and if any such security or payment shall be avoided, reduced, set aside or rendered unenforceable the Chargee shall be entitled to recover the full amount or value of any such security or payment from the Chargor and otherwise to enforce this Deed as if such re-assignment, release, settlement or discharge had not taken place
- This Deed shall remain the property of the Chargee notwithstanding any release or discharge or purported release or discharge hereof
- No failure or delay by the Chargee in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Deed shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Chargee of any right, power or privilege preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.

Any release, settlement or discharge between the Chargor and the Chargee shall be conditional upon no security or payment made or given to the Chargee being avoided, reduced, set aside or rendered unenforceable by virtue of any provision or enactment now or hereafter in force relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation and if any such security or payment shall be avoided, reduced, set aside or rendered unenforceable the Chargee shall be entitled to recover the full amount or value of any such security or payment from the Chargor and otherwise to enforce this Deed as if such release, settlement or discharge had not taken place

16 Assignment

The Chargee shall not be entitled to charge, sub-charge, license, transfer, assign or otherwise grant security over or deal with all or any of the rights assigned and granted to it hereunder (including the benefit of any warranties, undertakings, representations and indemnities) to any third party provided however that Chargee shall be entitled to assign the benefit hereof to a member of the Chargee's group of undertakings. The Chargor shall not assign any or all part of its rights and benefits hereunder to any third party without the prior written consent of the Chargee

17 Partial Unenforceability

If any clause or any part of this Deed or the application thereof to either party shall for any reason be adjudged by any court or other legal authority of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect the remainder of this Deed, which shall continue in full force and effect

18 Notices

Any notices required to be given under the provisions of this Deed shall be in writing and in English and shall be deemed to have been duly served if hand delivered or sent by facsimile or other print-out communication mechanisms or, within the United Kingdom, by prepaid special or first-class post, or, outside the United Kingdom, by prepaid international courier, correctly addressed to the relevant party's address as specified in this Deed or to such other address as either party may hereafter designate from time to time in accordance with this clause together with a copy in the case of the Chargee to Ingenious Project Finance Limited (Attention Directors, fax +44 207 319 4001) and a copy in the case of the Chargor to 15 Golden Square, London W1F 9JG (Attention Directors, fax +44 207 319 4001), and any notice so given shall be deemed to have been served (unless actually received at an earlier time in which case the time of service shall be the time of such actual receipt)

- 181 If hand delivered, at the time of delivery,
- 18 2 If sent by facsimile or other print-out communication mechanisms, at completion of transmission if during business hours at its destination, or at the opening of business on the next business day if not during business hours (and for this purpose "business hours" means between 09 00 and 17 30 and "business day" means Monday to Friday, excluding bank or other public holidays in the country of the addressee) but subject to proof by the sender that it holds an answerback or automatic printout confirming successful transmission in readable form and in the case of facsimile and other print-out communication mechanisms, to proof by the sender that it holds a transmission report indicating uninterrupted transmission to the addressee, and
- 18 3 if sent by prepaid post as aforesaid, forty-eight (48) hours after posting (exclusive of the hours of Sunday), if posted to an address within the country of posting, and three (3) days after posting if posted to an address outside the country of posting

19 No Waiver

No failure or delay on the part of the Chargee or the Chargor in exercising any right, title, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any other right, power or remedy hereunder. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies in law

20 Governing Law

This Deed (including any non-contractual matters arising out of or in connection with it) shall be construed and performed in all respects in accordance with, and shall be governed by, the laws of England and the parties irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts

21 Clause Headings

The clause headings in this Deed are for the convenience of the parties only and shall not limit, govern or otherwise affect its interpretation in any way

22 Counterparts

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts and on separate counterparts, and each counterpart shall when executed constitute an original of this Deed and together all such counterparts shall constitute one and the same document. Executed copies of the signature pages of this Deed sent by facsimile or transmitted electronically in either Tagged Image Format Files (TIFF) or Portable Document Format (PDF) shall be treated as originals, fully binding and with full legal force and effect, and the parties waive any rights they may have to object to such treatment. The Chargor shall provide its original ink signatures to the Chargee as quickly as practicable after execution of this Deed.

IN WITNESS whereof the Chargor and the Chargee have executed this instrument as a Deed the day, month and year first above written

EXECUTION PAGE 1 OF SECURITY DEED IN RESPECT OF "MULLIGAN"

Executed and delivingenious Project acting by its director	-	Harry Topical
	Theral fred.	
Witness Address Witness Occupatio	c/o 15 Golden Square London W1F 9JG , SQJC /TSK	
Executed and delive Hazeltine Product acting by its directors.	-	; auxo
In the presence of Witness signature Witness Name // Witness Address	C/o 15 Golden Square London W1F 9JG	

Witness Occupation SOUCHOR

EXECUTION PAGE 2 OF SECURITY DEED IN RESPECT OF "MULLIGAN"

Executed and delivered as a deed by

Montage Productions PLC

acting by its director or duly appointed Attorney

} (vour

In the presence of

Witness signature Council Cross

Witness Name HANNAH LOVETT

Witness Address

c/o 15 Golden Square London

W1F 9JG

Witness Occupation SOUCITUR